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HSBC
4,737,826{.52230,352.94 4,507, 473|. 58
187,964.D7 0 187,964.p07
310,168.94 1,702,657.103,114,985[. 42
14,091.09¢ 38,272. 77 163,783.p1
22,025. 41 490, 166.16 2,646,844[.67
5,324.45 23,195.7pD 145,911.P6
HSBC
) () ()
C ) C ) )
1,293,846.59261,551.27 1,032, 295[. 32
32,962.pH2 0 32,962.p2
() () )
() () )
188,598. 70 6,665. 02 181, 933. 68
3,685.92 0 3,685. 92
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100, 000 HSBC
25,000
25,000
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
12 HSBC
HSBC
100, 000 500, 000 3.150 3.0
500,000 1,000, 000 2.625 2.5
1,000, 000 3,000,000 2.100 2.0
3,000,000 5,000,000 1.575 1.5
5,000,000 1.050 1.0
HSBC
25,000 500, 000 3.150 3.0
500, 000 1,000, 000 2.625 2.5
1,000, 000 3,000,000 2.100 2.0
3,000,000 5,000,000 1.575 1.5
5,000,000 1.050 1.0
25,000 500, 000 3.150 3.0
500, 000 1,000, 000 2.625 2.5
1,000,000 3,000,000 2.100 2.0
3,000,000 5,000,000 1.575 1.5
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HSBC
)
129
23 103
GY1 4AN 20
22 31 UFJ
84.56
HSBC
2010 30
2010 30 20009 30
303,91325,699321, 16427, 158
7 2,629 222 24,700 2,089
8 671 57 106 9
3,300 279 24,806 2,098
9 (3,123)(264) (55, 398)4, 684)
( ) 177 15 (30,592)2,587)

304,09025, 714290,5724,571
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2010 13 HSBC
HSBC
2010 30

2010 30 20009 30

3 75,275 6,365(177, 949)5, 047)

4 35 3

12 (367) (31) (390) (33)

5 (5,316)(450) (8,638)(730)

(5,683)(481) (8,993)(760)

69,592 5, 885(186, 9421)5, 808)

2010 30

2010 30 2009 30

290, 57224,571601, 66550, 877
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3,293 278 50,492 4,270
(59,3670)5, 0200174, 6431)4, 768)
(56, 074)4, 7420124, 1511)0, 498)

69,592 5, 885(186, 9421)5, 808)

304,09025, 714290,5724,571

HSBC
2010 30

2010 30 2009 30

69, 5925,885 186, 942)15, 808)
3 (74, 798P, 3251)67, 125 14,132

26 2 1,076 91

30 3 (521) (44)

421 36 (857) (72)
(4,729)(400)(20,119)(1,701)

(35,360R, 990108, 9619, 214)
148, 9162,592194, 707 16, 464
113, 5569, 602 85,746 7,251

(52, 188%,413%54,829 4,636
3,293 278 50,492 4,270
(59,3675, 020174, 643)14,768)
(108, 26(29, 155)69, 322)(5, 862)

565 48 (3,695) (312)
106 9 3,801 321
671 57 106 9
565 48 (3,695) (312)

52,1884,41854,829) (4,636)
52,7534,461(58,524)(4,949)

49/172



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(54, 728%,627)3,801 321
15 (1,970)(167)(54,723)(4,627)
54,529
HSBC
HSBC 1990
HSBC
HSBC
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2010 30 2009 30
74,798 (167, 125)
477 (10, 824)
75,275 (177,949)
2010 30 2009 30
35
2010 30 2009 30
(4, 855) (8,028)
(301) (515)
(24) (8)
(136) (87)
(160) (95)

(5,316) (8,638)
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HSBC 2007
HSBC
1.65
0.90 400, 595 2009 375,476
HSBC 2007
HSBC 2008 31
HSBC (O
0.10 24,841 2009 23,189
2007 HSBC
HSBC
LI BOR 10
2010 30 2009 30
2,378 23,885
13 191 729
60 8 6
2,629 24,700
2010 30 20009 30
671 106
2010 4 30 A-1+ 2009 4 30 A -
2010 30 2009 30

12 (2,641) (54,8209)
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13 (41) (158)
(25) (23)
(401) (376)
(15) (12)
(3,123) (55, 398)
10
HSBC 19809
600 20009
600
11
2009
3,114, 985.34220,800.58111,000.0032,220.30,0688, 006.00
22,025.418,194.57 761.03 30,981.01
(490, 166.(1162)6, 401. 69) (616,567.85)
2010 30
2,646,844.26171,593.46111,761.0332,220.30,0002,419.16
2008
4,507, 473.35%8, 744,39212,000.0032,220.50,0107, 437.97
310, 168. 91402, 999. 214 413,168. 18
(1,702, 657.11208), 943. 0(5501, 000.00) (1,932,600.15)
2009 30
3,114,985.34209,800.58111,000.0032,220.30,0588, 006.00
12
HSBC C.
10
25 HSBC
c. 1. 2,641, 009 ¢
20009 54,828,557 366, 758
390, 158
13
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2010 30 HSBC
2010 28 6,385,618 4,826,000 (40,6009)
(40,6009)
2010 30 HSBC
2010 28 19,838,00026,249, 046 166,928
166,928
2010 30 HSBC
2010 28 2,852,000 3,773,681 23,9909
23,999
2010 (40,6009)
2010 190,927
2009 30 HSBC
20009 29 7,464,067 5,716,000 (158, 171)
(158, 171)
2009 30 HSBC
20009 29 24,146,00031,530, 330 668, 160
20009 29 28,836 38,460 (7)

668, 153
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61, 154

61, 154

(158, 178)

729,314

1.1882 2,641,

671, 421
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2009 106, 017

2010 30 A- 1+ 20009 30 A-1+
2010 30
6,298 23,787 30,085
297,642 (23,637) 274,005

303,940 150 304,090
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7,561 27,562 35,123
282,440 (26,991) 255, 449
290,001 571 290,572
2010 30
overy Fund Limited (The) - 3EuwWredd Cl ass ¢
overy Fund Limited (The - 2EWBr2et SGY
overy Fund Limited (The) - 6URMDM5CI ass S
i onal Ltd - SPV 17, 455
te I nternational Fund L. P. 1- 69i3de Pocke
rs Holdings, Ltd. - Class B,-2701Dec200¢
Situations Fund Ltd - Class &9 USD Seri e
Situations Fund Ltd - Class &0USD Seri e
Situations Fund Ltd - Class A2USD Seri e
Situations Fund Ltd - Class 4A7USD Ser i e
Situations Fund Ltd - Class 269USD Seri e
Situations Fund Ltd - Class 289USD Seri e
Partners Special Situations Offshore
nt s) 3,606
Partners Special Situatiods, DIé shore F
Partners Offshore Fund I, 7t4dh. - CIl as:¢
tner s, Ltd. - Class B Restris®ed Series:c
tners, Lt d. - Class B Restri48ed Seriec
s Fund 1I1, Ltd. - Class M $erbibels ( SOPS)
tions Fund Limited - USD Cl7aslstrilLock Up
rtunities Fund Ltd Class B-5] 6Ré&strictec
rtunities Fund Ltd Class S-1-VF27 Seri e
rtunities Fund Ltd Class S-1L5WF28 Seri e
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Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-15¥F29 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-M432F30 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-12%F32 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-B1IWF33 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-318F34 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-32WF35 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3-VF36 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-32&F37 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-13 2MPR38 Ser i
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-2321MF40 Seri
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-35WF41 Seri
St eel Partners |1 (Of fshore), Ltd. - SPH (SdR)293
St eel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - CI
14 1,748

2010 30
St eel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - CI
14 695
SVRF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd. - USD Class - 5VD4BE/ 1
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S9R27
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series 22,270
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series 3,338
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S5460
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 181
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 1B5
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 88
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 9%

111,123
2009 30

2009 30
Bl uebay Value Recovery Euro SGY 2,790
Bl uebay Value Recovery Euro Class S 4, 771
Bl uebay Value Recovery Fund 8,748
Cerberus International Fund 18, 778
De Shaw Composite Funds April 1 Sidepocket 1,958
Fortelus Class A USD SP2 8 4
Fortelus Class A USD sP4 C 40
Fortelus Class A USD SP4 A 75
Fortelus Class A USD SP5 1,961
Fortelus Class A USD SP5 F 1,186
Fortelus Class A USD SP5 D 1,107
Har binger Capital Partners 7,921
Har binger Capital Partners Fund Class L 262
Har binger Capital Partners LP Class R 4,375
Jana Offshore Class B 21
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shore Class B 18
eas Accumul ati on 6, 287
obal Opportunities Class S-1 VF32 Serleés 1
obal Opportunities Class S-1 Series 1326
obal Opportunities Class B-1 Restrit3ed6i4
obal Opportunities Class S-1 VF29 52
obal Opportunities Class S-1 VF27 53
obal Opportunities Class S-1 VF30 449
obal Opportunities Class S-1 VF28 319
obal Opportunities Fund Class S-1 VF33%9
2009 30
obal Opportunities Fund Class S-1 VF3Z0
obal Opportunities Fund Class S-1 VF3%3
obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-15%F 34 Seri
obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-R29MF 33 Seri
obal Opportunities VF40 180
obal Opportunities VF41 426
obal VF 38 1,134
rtners Japan Unit Trust Cl a SP 2 (G)7T6Series
rtners Japan Unit Trust Cl a SP1 Sedr i5eé6sl 14
rtners Offshore 8,181
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 3 713
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 4 264
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 5 283
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 2 802
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 9 33
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 6 112
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 1 909
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 7 136
Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 8 142
91, 793
2010 30 2009 30
671 565 106
(2,641) 52,188 (54,829)
(1,970) 52,753 (54,723)
2010 30
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18

19

20
2010 13

HSBC
2010 30

2009 2.60

Bl uebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (IbepR36 Eu2,03546Y O0.76
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (2Hep83 EudF,o7r69 asi. 34

6,089 2.00

2009 107.93

Bl ueBay Value Recovery Fund Limited (5BepP24 USD LUdmmss2S27
Cerberus International Ltd - SPV 16,897 17,455 5.74
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Limited - Series 1B
Shares Non New | ssues 13,802 39,313 12.93
D. E. Shaw Composite International Fund L.P. - Side Pocket Series
(SOP) 1 1,603 0.53
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund L.P. - Ordinary Series (SOP)
post Jan 10 1 23,774 7.82
Delta U.S. Partners Holdings, Ltd. - CRas8§1lB -1,02Mec20092
Fortelus Speci al Situations Fund Ltd - 2Z33%3ss A 8SD Sebi 88 SP2
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - 6Rass A B8SD Sebi 88 SP4 A
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - GBGHass A U3D Sebi BF SP4 C
Fortelus Speci al Situations Fund Ltd -1,C8la6ss A 4AJSD Sebi &6 SP5
Fortelus Speci al Situations Fund Ltd -1,Cl0alss A AUBSD Sebhi 89 SP5 D
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd -1,Cl0a3s A AUSD Sebi &6 SP5 F
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd -8,C12%s B4U8R4Seni 83 01-08
Fortelus Speci al Situations Fund Ltd -2,C01la8& s B3,USM1 Sedi &5 04-07
Fortelus Speci al Situations Fund Ltd -8,C8&Xxs B4UQB7Sedi 69 10-07
Har bi nger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. -
SOP (Speci al Il nvest ments) 1 3,606 1.19
Har binger Capital Partners Speci al Situations Offshore Fund, L. pP. -
SOP 1 31,216 10.27
Har binger Capital Partners Offshore Fund I, Ltd. - Class L - Series
1 254 744 0.24
JANA Offshore Partners, Ltd. - Class B Bé&@stricté&® SerDeb201/2002
JANA Of fshore Partners, Ltd. - Class B ReGGtrictd® SerDeb207/ 2007
Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment Fund Limited - Class R - USD
Shares Series 1 250, 000 20, 888 6.87
OZ Europe Overseas Fund 1|1, Ltd. - Class M Series (SOPS)
Post 1st Mar 10 6,476 5,551 1.83
Pershing Square International, Ltd. -16L 428 D28emMile@s @R51
RAB Speci al Situations Fund Limited - 6SI62XI ashk, Lok DPDp3&. 10. 11
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl6as&648-1 Reasa5icflel6Series 2
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd CB&s608-1 VF27 Sebi &b 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl a%%ws2 S-1 VIF28B8 Sebi 65 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cla$s S-1 VB4129 Sebi6g 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl| as?%s5 S-1 VFBD Sebi &4 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl alss9 S-1 VR332 Sebpib6g 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl a%7%0 S-1 VFB®B Sebi e&s 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl alss5 S-3 VIFB3# Sebi6g 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl| a8&0®1 S-3 VFBHG Sebi £88 1
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Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl ax%5 S-3 VF36 Sebi&66 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cla$®2 S-3 VRB7 Sebhibg 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cllas®k75-3 VN,FB389 Sebi 8 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl ax%6 S-3 VFU4ID Sebi6g 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cl a4s7%3 S-3 VFAQU Sebi &8 1
Steel Partners |1l (Offshore), Ltd. - 4SPH 95580P)7, 293 2.40
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class SP1 (C)
Series 14 2,144 1,748 0.57
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class SP2 (C)
Series 14 587 695 0.23
SVRF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd. - USD Cbas&341 V25,043 1.66
2010 30
2009 107.93
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Sedi, 671 23,268 7.65
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Ser926 S 1 927 0.30
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Ser78&7%s S 21,270 0. 42
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Ser76G?’s S 31,138 0.37
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Ser2%®% S 4 560 0.18
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Serli%e&s S 5 181 0.05
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Serl33* S 7 135 0.04
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Ser33®6G S 8 68 0.02
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Ser2d3& S 9 4 0.00
Trian Partners, Ltd. Class D Restridbe@®@08er ilés 143 5.29
Trian Partners, Ltd. - Class D Restric8&,edd00eri®,s9bl 2.61
297,824 97.94
(2009 110.53 ) 303,913 99.914
( ) 177 0.06
304,090 100.00
2010/ [ 30 2009/ [/ 30
HSBC
99. 12 78. 79
HSBC
101. 44 80. 09
HSBC
94. 36 75.50
HSBC
89. 36 71. 05
2010/ [ 30 2009/ [/ 30
11.15 9. 33
88. 85 90. 67
100. 00 100. 00
2010/ [ 30 2009/ [/ 30
T1 162,669, 968328, 371,821
T2 62,629,945 225,134, 394
M 306, 322,983457,218, 352
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32.66 22.58

((T2-T2) / M) X 100)

2010 30 ( )
Cerberus International Fund Ltd - $BV753 18, 753
St eel Partners || Hol dings LP 421,958 7,293
Strategic Value Credit Series ES8 112,643 5,022
SVRF(Of fshore) Holdings Ltd USD Cl ags000 2,378
Delta US Partners Holdings Ltd - ChLas878B 1,287
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 449 321
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 3AGl5ass S 107
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd 209 83
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 46Class S$-53 VF41
Fortelus Class A USD SP2 8 4 39
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd Cbass 10
TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd 20 7
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 12 6
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 22 4
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Lt#&5,508 3
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd -2 Class S13 VF40
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 1 1
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund Ltd 5 1
Cerberus International Fund Ltd - SIPW9O0 20,602
Delta Europe Class B 244,120 17,739
Delta US Partners Ltd Holdings Ltdl53,Q0l4a2ss 1B, 704
l cahn Fund Ltd 15,000 10, 959
Strategic Value Credit Series E U150,000 9, 883
Fortelus Special Situations Cl ass 9,765 9,564
Stark Gl obal Opportunities Fund 13,220 9,565
CQS Directional Opps Fund Series 1B, 772 9,000
St eel Partners Holdings LP 14,644 7,988
De Shaw Composite International 1 7,078
St eel Partners Japan Unit Class SP1B8C26%eri@s33a@a
TPG- Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd 6,418 6,000
Delta US Partners Ltd 78,000 5,270
Strategic Value Credit Series 70,000 4,680
Strategic Value Credit Series ES8 60, 112 4,293
SVRF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd USD Ck8s600 1,684
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund 11, 088 1,326
l cahn Fund Ltd Class B Series 5 1,600 1,169
Bl uebay Value Recovery Fund Limited,-55BBuro CVa4ds S
OZ Europe Overseas Fund 11, Ltd 993 690

*

20

63/172



HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 APRIL 2010

Portfolio of investments

Current assets:
Debtors
Cash and bank balances

Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares

EDINETOOOO
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As at
30 April 2010
Notes US$’000 US$’000
303,913
7 2,629
8 671
3,300
9 (3,123)
177
304,090

Ooooooooooooooooooad

As at
30 April 2009
US$’000 US$’000

321,164

24,700

106

24,806

(55,398)
(30,592)
290,572

The financial statements on pages 7 to 20 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guernsey)
Limited, on 13 September 2010 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director

Director

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2010

Net capital gains/(losses)
Revenue

Finance costs: interest
Operating expenses

Net expenses

Year Ended
30 April 2010
Notes US$’000 US$’000

3 75,275
4 R

12 (367)

5 (5,316)

(5,683)
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US$’000 US$’000
(177,949)
35
(390)
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Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares from investment
activities 69,592 (186,942)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2010 30 April 2009
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the year 290,572 601,665

Movement due to issue and redemption of redeemable
participating shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 3,293 50,492

Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (59,367) (174,643)
(56,074) (124,151)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating shares from
investment activities 69,592 (186,942)

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 304,090 290,572

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2010

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2010 30 April 2009
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Operating activities
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating shares 69,592 (186,942)
Adjustments for:
Net capital (gains)/losses 3 (74,798) 167,125
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in other debtors 26 1,076
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses 30 (521)
Unrealised gains/(losses) on forward contracts 421 (857)
Cash flow from operating activities (4,729) (20,119)

Investing activities
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Cash flow from investing activities
Financing activities
Increase/(decrease) in loans payable

Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable shares

Cash flow from financing activities
Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year

Cash at the beginning of the year

Cash at the end of the year

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year
Cash flow from changes in debt

Movement in net debt in the year

Net (debt)/credit at start of the year

Net debt at end of the year 15

(35,360) (108,961)
148,916 194,707
113,556 85,746
(52,188) 54,829
3,293 50,492
(59,367) (174,643)
(108,262) (69,322)
565 (3,695)

106 3,801

671 106

565 (3,695)
52,188 (54,529)
52,753 (58,524)
(54,723) 3,801
(1,970) (54,723)

The notes on pages 10 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (“the Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, a unit trust which is
authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Special Opportunities Investments Limited (“the Company”), a BVI
registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Portfolio of Investments. The purpose of a company holding the
investments is to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material

in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of
investments and in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

for Authorised Funds issued by Investment Management Association.

Functional and presentational currency

The functional and presentational currency is US Dollar because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Fund operates.

Investments
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Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying investments that
the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on
investments are included on the Statement of Total Return. Realised gains and losses on sales of securities are
determined using the average cost method. Purchases and sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date
plus one basis.

Income
Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis. All non-class specific income is allocated to

each share class in proportion to the number of redeemable participating shares in issue during the year. All class
specific income is allocated to the share class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis. All non-class specific expenses are allocated to each share class in
proportion to the number of redeemable participating shares in issue during the year. All class specific expenses are
allocated to the share class to which they relate.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of UK
Accounting Standards requires Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing exchange
rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss as well as the unrealised
exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the Statement of Total Return.
Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar
denominated payables and receivables and on foreign currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total
Return.

Foreign currency forward contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is reported as
an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Balance Sheet.

Cash

Cash comprises current deposits with banks.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of Total
Return on an accruals basis.

Formation expense
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In accordance with the Fund’s Prospectus the formation costs will be amortised over a period not exceeding five years
or such shorter period as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in line with
UK Accounting Standards. This departure from UK Accounting Standards does not have a material impact on the
results reported in the financial statements.

Management Fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee payable out of the assets of each Fund. The management fee shall
be calculated and accrued at each Valuation Point and in respect thereof the calculation shall be the Net Assets
multiplied by the Management Fee Rate multiplied by the number of days elapsed since the last Valuation Point

divided by 365.

Shares in issue

Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of redeemable participating shares and will

be classified as financial liabilities.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

All of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund are held at fair values.

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return. Realised gains and
losses on the sale of securities are determined using the average cost method.

3 NET CAPITAL GAINS/(LOSSES)

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2010 30 April 2009
US$°000 US$’000
Net capital gains/(losses) on non-derivative investments 74,798 (167,125)
Net capital gains/(losses) on derivative investments 477 (10,824)
Total net capital gains/(losses) 75,275 (177,949)
4 REVENUE
Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2010 30 April 2009
US$°000 US$’000
Interest income - 35
5 OPERATING EXPENSES
Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2010 30 April 2009
US$°000 US$’000
Payable to the Manager and its associates:
Management fees (4,855) (8,028)
Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees (301) (515)
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Other expenses:

Audit fees (24) (8)
Other sundry expenses (136) (87)

(160) (95)
Total expenses (5,316) (8,638)

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 8 February 2007, which constituted the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund,
HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. The Manager receives a fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro
Class, and a fee of 0.90% for Institutional Class (US Dollar) and Institutional Class (Euro). The fee outstanding at year
end was US$400,595 (2009: US$375,476).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 8 February 2007, which constituted the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund,
HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Trustee. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee changed its
name to HSBC Private Bank (C.I.) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset value per annum. The
fee outstanding at the year end was US$24,841 (2009: US$23,189).

Under the terms of an agreement dated 8 February 2007, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Investments
Limited as the Investment Adviser of the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund. The Investment Adviser receives a
performance fee of 10% of the excess of the benchmark which is the 3 Month LIBOR plus 5% rate of the relevant
currency prevailing during the relevant period, subject to the Net Asset VValue per Share at the start of the performance
period is not less than the Net Asset Value per Share at the end of any previous performance period. There was no
performance fee paid during or outstanding at the year end.

7 DEBTORS As at As at

30 April 2010 30 April 2009

US$'000 US$'000

Sales awaiting settlement 2,378 23,885
Unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange

contracts (see Note 13) 191 729

Other debtors 60 86

2,629 24,700

8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES As at As at

30 April 2010 30 April 2009

US$'000 US$'000

Cash and bank balances 671 106

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian”). The credit rating of State
Street Bank and Trust Company, the parent of the Custodian, at 30 April 2010 was A-1+ (30 April 2009: A-1+).

9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR As at As at

30 April 2010 30 April 2009

US$'000 US$'000

Loans payable (see Note 12) (2,641) (54,829)
Unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange

contracts (see Note 13) (41) (158)

Accrued Trustee fees (25) (23)

Accrued Management fees (401) (376)

Other creditors (15) (12)

(3,123) (55,398)
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10

11

12

13

TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax
(Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 (2009: GBP 600).

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Number Number Number Number Number
US Dollar Euro Institutional Institutional Total
Class Class Class Class
(US Dollar) (Euro) (US Dollar) (Euro)
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at
1 May 2009 3,114,985.42 329,800.58 111,000.00 32,220.00 3,588,006.00
Issued on subscriptions 22,025.41 8,194.57 761.03 - 30,981.01
Redemptions (490,166.16)  (126,401.69) - - (616,567.85)
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at
30 April 2010 2,646,844.67 211,593.46 111,761.03 32,220.00 3,002,419.16
Number Number Number Number Number
US Dollar Euro Institutional Institutional Total
Class Class Class Class
(US Dollar) (Euro) (US Dollar) (Euro)
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at
1 May 2008 4,507,473.58 355,744.39 212,000.00 32,220.00 5,107,437.97
Issued on subscriptions 310,168.94 102,999.24 - 413,168.18
Redemptions (1,702,657.10)  (128,943.05)  (101,000.00) - (1,932,600.15)
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at
30 April 2009 3,114,985.42 329,800.58 111,000.00 32,220.00 3,588,006.00

All series of shares rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights attached to them.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.I.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.

Loan

The Company has the ability to borrow up to 25% of its adjusted total of capital and reserves for short-term or
temporary purposes as may be necessary for settlement of transactions, to facilitate redemption (where applicable) or
for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund’s Net Asset Value, to facilitate additional
investment in Investment Funds. HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the
year. At the year end the loan outstanding was US$2,641,099 (2009: US$54,828,557). The interest paid during the year
was US$366,758 (2009: US$390,158).

FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each share class and certain currency
exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative instruments as may
be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment Adviser retains the right to vary the policy on
currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the holders of the relevant share
class only.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13

FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
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The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2010 for the purposes of
hedging foreign currency assets on the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Loss

US$

28-May-10 US$6,385,618 EURA4,826,000 State Street London (40,609)
(40,609)

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2010 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund  Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain

US$

28-May-10 EUR19,838,000 US$26,249,046 State Street London 166,928
166,928

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2010 in respect of hedging of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund  Euro Institutional Class (Euro).

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain

USs$

28-May-10 EUR2,852,000 US$3,773,681 State Street London 23,999
23,999

Total unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts April 2010 (40,609)
Total unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts April 2010 190,927

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2009 for the purposes of hedging
foreign currency assets on the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Loss

US$

29-May-09 US$7,464,067 EURS5,716,000 State Street London (158,171)
(158,171)

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2009 in respect of the hedging of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund  Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain/(Loss)

USs$

29-May-09 EUR24,146,000 US$31,530,330 State Street London 668,160
29-May-09 EUR28,836 US$38,460 State Street London (7)
668,153

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2009 in respect of hedging of the
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund  Euro Institutional Class (Euro).

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain
Us$
29-May-09 EUR2,210,000 US$2,885,862 State Street London 61,154
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61,154
Total unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts as at April 2009 (158,178)
Total unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts as at April 2009 729,314

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price risk, liquidity risk and credit risks.

(a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential
loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The Investment Adviser
considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with particular countries or
industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct assessments of the future
course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There can be no assurance that the
Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities markets have in recent years been
characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy into which the Investment
Adviser has invested the Fund’s assets, there is always some, and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of Investments
included on pages 21 and 22.

(b) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its
issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the prospectus.
The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund and reviewed
quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and
situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay interest nor have a
maturity date. The underlying funds the fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk; however, the Fund mitigates
this risk by diversifying its investments. The Fund has borrowed US$2,641,099 at year end (30 April 2009:
US$54,828,557) which bears interest at 1.125% (30 April 2009: 1.1882%). To minimise interest rate risk the Fund
enters into floating rate loan agreements. The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of
US$671,421 (2009: US$106,017).

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and also bears the risk of settlement default. The Fund
minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties on recognised
and reputable exchanges.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating to unsettled
transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the brokers
used. The Fund monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate the risk.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian
). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect to securities held by the
Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions
of the Custodian the Fund uses. The credit rating of State Street Bank and Trust Company, the parent of the Custodian,
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at 30 April 2010 was A-1+ (30 April 2009: A-1+). In addition the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the
credit risk held by the underlying fund investments.

(e) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Fund’s assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant share class
on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and exposures are
monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign currency risk.
This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into foreign exchange contracts as described further in this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2010.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

Euro 6,298 23,787 30,085
US Dollar 297,642 (23,637) 274,005
303,940 150 304,090

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2009.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

Euro 7,561 27,562 35,123
US Dollar 282,440 (26,991) 255,449
290,001 571 290,572

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(f) Liquidity risk
The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the Fund
might not be able to liquidate investments positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its shareholders.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or other
vehicles that have no liquidity.

The Fund’s investment restrictions, as defined in the prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of liquidity
risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the Custodian of the Fund. There are specific
guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction
levels.

As at 30 April 2010 the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s ability to redeem
its investment holdings.

Market Value at

30 April 2010

US$°000

Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - Euro Class S 3,765
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - Euro SGY 2,324
BlueBay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - USD Class S 6,905
Cerberus International Ltd - SPV 17,455
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund L.P. - Side Pocket Series (SOP) 1,603
Delta U.S. Partners Holdings, Ltd. - Class B - 01Dec2009 1,274
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP2 89
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Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP4 A 80
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP4 C 42
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP5 477
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP5 D 269
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP5 F 289
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - SOP (Special

Investments) 3,606
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - SOP 31,216
Harbinger Capital Partners Offshore Fund I, Ltd. - Class L - Series 1 744
JANA Offshore Partners, Ltd. - Class B Restricted Series 01/2002 56
JANA Offshore Partners, Ltd. - Class B Restricted Series 07/2007 48
OZ Europe Overseas Fund Il, Ltd. - Class M Series (SOPS) Post 1st Mar 10 5,551
RAB Special Situations Fund Limited - USD Class Lock Up 1.10.11 7,171
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class B-1 Restricted Series 2 5,645
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF27 Series 1 -
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF28 Series 1 156
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF29 Series 1 51
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF30 Series 1 432
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF32 Series 1 23
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF33 Series 1 310
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF34 Series 1 118
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF35 Series 1 526
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VVF36 Series 1 -
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF37 Series 1 26
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF38 Series 1 1,249
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF40 Series 1 211
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VVF41 Series 1 350
Steel Partners 11 (Offshore), Ltd. - SPH (SOP) 7,293
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class SP1 (C) Series 14 1,748

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(f) Liquidity risk (continued)

Market Value at

30 April 2010

US$’000

Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class SP2 (C) Series 14 695
SVREF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd. - USD Class - V2-0E/1 5,043
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 1 927
TPG-AXxon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 2 1,270
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 3 1,138
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 4 560
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 5 181
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 7 135
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 8 68
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 9 4
111,123

At the 30 April 2009 the following investee funds had put in place restrictions which limit the Fund’s ability to redeem

its investment holdings.

Market Value at

30 April 2009

US$’000

Bluebay Value Recovery Euro SGY 2,790
Bluebay Value Recovery Euro Class S 4,771
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund 8,748
Cerberus International Fund 18,778
De Shaw Composite Funds April 1 Sidepocket 1,958
Fortelus Class A USD SP2 84
Fortelus Class A USD SP4 C 40
Fortelus Class A USD SP4 A 75
Fortelus Class A USD SP5 1,961
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Fortelus Class A USD SP5 F

Fortelus Class A USD SP5 D

Harbinger Capital Partners

Harbinger Capital Partners Fund Class L

Harbinger Capital Partners LP Class R

Jana Offshore Class B

Jana Offshore Class B

OZ Overseas Accumulation

Stark Global Opportunities Class S-1 VF32 Series 1
Stark Global Opportunities Class S-1 Series 1

Stark Global Opportunities Class B-1 Restricted
Stark Global Opportunities Class S-1 VF29

Stark Global Opportunities Class S-1 VF27

Stark Global Opportunities Class S-1 VF30

Stark Global Opportunities Class S-1 VF28

Stark Global Opportunities Fund Class S-1 VF36
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Class S-1 VF37
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Class S-1 VF35
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF 34 Series 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF 33 Series 1
Stark Global Opportunities VF40

Stark Global Opportunities VF41

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(f) Liquidity risk (continued)

Stark Global VF 38

Steel Partners Japan Unit Trust Class SP 2 (C) Series 14
Steel Partners Japan Unit Trust Class SP1 Series 14
Steel Partners Offshore

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 3

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 4

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 5

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 2

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 9

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 6

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 1

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 7

TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd Series S 8

15 ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT

At 30 April 2010

EDINETOO OO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
0000000000000000000

1,186

1,107

7,921

Market Value at
30 April 2009
US$’000

1,134
576
1,561
8,181
713
264
283
802
33
112
909
136
142
91,793

Cash flow At 30 April 2009

US$ 000 US$ ‘000 US$ ‘000
Cash and bank balances 565 106
Loans payable (2,641) 52,188 (54,829)
Net Debt (1,970) 52,753 (54,723)

16 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”.

17 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

The following foreign exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency (United

States Dollars):

751172
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30 April 2010
Euro 0.7521

18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

There were no significant events during the year which require disclosure in the financial statements.
19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events since the year end.
20 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved on 13 September 2010.

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2010 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets
EUR (2009: 2.60%)
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - Euro SGY 15,236 2,324 0.76 %
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - Euro Class S 24,683 3,765 1.24 %
6,089 2.00 %
USD (2009: 107.93%)
BlueBay Value Recovery Fund Limited (The) - USD Class S 59,924 6,905 227 %
Cerberus International Ltd - SPV 16,897 17,455 5.74 %
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Limited - Series 1B Shares
Non New Issues 13,802 39,313 12.93 %
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund L.P. - Side Pocket Series (SOP) 1 1,603 0.53 %
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund L.P. - Ordinary Series (SOP) post
Jan 10 1 23,774 7.82 %
Delta U.S. Partners Holdings, Ltd. - Class B - 01Dec2009 12,871 1,274 0.42 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP2 233 89 0.03 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP4 A 62 80 0.03 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP4 C 34 42 0.01 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP5 1,816 477 0.16 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP5 D 1,100 269 0.09 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class A USD Series SP5 F 1,103 289 0.10 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class B USD Series 01-08 8,729 14,824 4.87 %
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class B USD Series 04-07 2,018 3,501 1.15%
Fortelus Special Situations Fund Ltd - Class B USD Series 10-07 8,882 14,247 4.69 %
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - SOP
(Special Investments) 1 3,606 1.19%
Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Offshore Fund, L.P. - SOP 1 31,216 10.27 %
Harbinger Capital Partners Offshore Fund |, Ltd. - Class L - Series 1 254 744 0.24 %
JANA Offshore Partners, Ltd. - Class B Restricted Series 01/2002 87 56 0.02 %
JANA Offshore Partners, Ltd. - Class B Restricted Series 07/2007 220 48 0.02 %
Lansdowne UK Strategic Investment Fund Limited - Class R - USD Shares
Series 1 250,000 20,888 6.87 %
OZ Europe Overseas Fund Il, Ltd. - Class M Series (SOPS) Post 1st Mar 10 6,476 5,551 1.83 %
Pershing Square International, Ltd. - Class D series 1R 15,428 28,912 9.51 %
RAB Special Situations Fund Limited - USD Class Lock Up 1.10.11 6,562 7,171 2.36 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class B-1 Restricted Series 2 6,864 5,645 1.86 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF27 Series 1 35,608 - 0.00 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF28 Series 1 972 156 0.05 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF29 Series 1 55 51 0.02 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF30 Series 1 675 432 0.14 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF32 Series 1 139 23 0.01 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-1 VF33 Series 1 370 310 0.10 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF34 Series 1 135 118 0.04 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF35 Series 1 801 526 0.17 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VVF36 Series 1 295 - 0.00 %
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VVF37 Series 1 62 26 0.01 %

76/172



Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF38 Series 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VF40 Series 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S-3 VVF41 Series 1
Steel Partners Il (Offshore), Ltd. - SPH (SOP)

Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class SP1 (C) Series 14
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class SP2 (C) Series 14

SVRF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd. - USD Class - V2-0E/1

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2010 (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Security Description

USD (2009: 107.93%) (continued)

TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series | 43
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 1
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 2
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 3
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 4
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 5
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 7
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 8
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore), Ltd - Series S 9
Trian Partners, Ltd. - Class D Restricted Series 43
Trian Partners, Ltd. - Class D Restricted Series 52

Portfolio of Investments (2009: 110.53%)

Net current assets (including derivatives)

Total net assets

Net asset value per share

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - USD Class
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Institutional USD Class
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - EUR Class
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Institutional EUR Class

Portfolio classification

Securities with an official stock exchange listing
Unlisted securities

Portfolio Turnover Ratio

Purchase and sale of securities (T1)
Subscription and redemption of units (T2)
Monthly average of total net assets (M)

Portfolio Turnover Ratio

1,075 1,249 0.41 %
296 211 0.07 %
473 350 0.12 %

421,958 7,293 2.40 %

2,144 1,748 0.57 %

587 695 0.23 %
52,531 5,043 1.66 %
Holding Market value % of total
UsS$'000 net assets

24,267 23,268 7.65 %
926 927 0.30 %
787 1,270 0.42 %
767 1,138 0.37 %
298 560 0.18 %
198 181 0.05 %
133 135 0.04 %
336 68 0.02 %
238 4 0.00 %
15,000 16,119 5.29 %
8,200 7,944 2.61 %
297,824 97.94 %
303,913 99.94 %
177 0.06 %
304,090 100.00 %

As at As at

30 April 2010 30 April 2009

US$99.12 US$78.79

US$101.44 US$80.09

EUR94.36 EUR75.50

EUR89.36 EUR71.05

% of Portfolio

% of Portfolio

As at As at

30 April 2010 30 April 2009
11.15% 9.33%

88.85 % 90.67 %

100.00 % 100.00 %

As at As at

30 April 2010 30 April 2009
US$162,669,968 US$328,371,821
US$62,629,945 US$225,134,394
US$306,322,983 US$457,218,352
32.66% 22.58%
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Note  The portfolio turnover ratio is calculated as follows ((T1-T2) / M) X 100)

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2010* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$’000
Cerberus International Fund Ltd - SPV 18,753 18,753
Steel Partners Il Holdings LP 421,958 7,293
Strategic Value Credit Series E8 112,643 5,022
SVRF(Offshore) Holdings Ltd USD Class 28,000 2,378
Delta US Partners Holdings Ltd - Class B 12,871 1,287
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd 449 321
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class S 335 107
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd 209 83
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd - Class S-3 VF41 46 45
Fortelus Class A USD SP2 84 39
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd Class 15 10
TPG Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd 20 7
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd 12 6
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd 22 4
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd 35,508 3
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd - Class S-3 VF40 2 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd 1 1
Stark Global Opportunities Fund Ltd 5 1
Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Cerberus International Fund Ltd ~ SPV 1,890 20,602
Delta Europe Class B 244,120 17,739
Delta US Partners Ltd Holdings Ltd  Class B 153,042 11,704
Icahn Fund Ltd 15,000 10,959
Strategic Value Credit Series E U 150,000 9,883
Fortelus Special Situations Class 9,765 9,564
Stark Global Opportunities Fund 13,220 9,565
CQS Directional Opps Fund Series 1B 3,772 9,000
Steel Partners Holdings LP 14,644 7,988
De Shaw Composite International 1 7,078
Steel Partners Japan Unit Class SP (C) Series 14 13,267 6,330
TPG-Axon Partners (Offshore) Ltd 6,418 6,000
Delta US Partners Ltd 78,000 5,270
Strategic Value Credit Series 70,000 4,680
Strategic Value Credit Series E8 60,112 4,293
SVRF (Offshore) Holdings Ltd USD Class 28,000 1,684
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund 11,088 1,326
Icahn Fund Ltd Class B Series 5 1,600 1,169
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Limited  Euro Class S 4,558 754
OZ Europe Overseas Fund I, Ltd 993 690

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the Fund at the start of the year. In any event, the 20 largest purchases and the 20 largest sales must be
shown.
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194,225 16,424
6,453 546
224 19
6,677 565
(8,612) (728)
(1, 935) (164)
192,290 16,260
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HSBC
20009 23 2010 30
2010 30
3 24,252 2,051
4 406 34
12 (26) (2)
5 (4,357) (368)
(3,977) (336)
20,275 1,714
20009 23 2010 30
2010 30

203,102 17,174
(31,087) (2,629)
172,015 14,546

20, 275 1,714
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HSBC 2009 23
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AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class3N28&ridslZf1l 2.17
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HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 APRIL 2010

As at
Notes 30 April 2010
US$°000 US$’000

Portfolio of investments 194,225
Current assets:
Debtors 7 6,453
Cash and bank balances 8 224

6,677
Less:
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 (8,612)
Net current liabilities (1,935)
Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares 192,290

The financial statements on pages 7 to 16 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guernsey)
Limited, on 13 September 2010 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director

Director

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE PERIOD FROM 23 APRIL 2009 (date of incorporation) TO 30 APRIL

2010

Period Ended

30 April 2010

Notes US$’000 US$’000

Net capital gains 3 24,252
Revenue 4 406
Finance costs: interest 12 (26)
Operating expenses 5 (4,357)

Net expenses

(3,977)
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Net increase in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment activities 20,275

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE PERIOD FROM 23 APRIL 2009 (date of incorporation)
TO 30 APRIL 2010

Period Ended
30 April 2010
US$°000 US$°000

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the period -

Movement due to issue and redemption of
redeemable participating shares:

Amounts received/receivable on issues 203,102
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (31,087)
172,015

Net increase in net assets attributable to the holders of
redeemable participating shares from investment activities 20,275

Net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the period 192,290

The notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Distressed Markets Fund (“the Fund”) is a sub-fund of HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, a unit trust which is
authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 1990.

The Fund owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Distressed Markets Investments Limited (“the Company™), a BVI
registered company. The Fund also loaned monies to the Company to fund its investing activities.

The Company owns the investments listed in the Balance Sheet. The purpose of a company holding the investments is
to ensure that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These financial statements include all the assets and liabilities of the Fund and the Company.
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Fund's financial statements:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of
investments and in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice
for Authorised Funds issued by Investment Management Association.

Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars which is the functional and presentational currency of
the Fund reflecting the fact that this is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates.
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Investments

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share for the underlying investments that
the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsey time) on the Balance Sheet date. Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on
investments are included on the Statement of Total Return. Realised gains and losses on sales of securities are
determined using the average cost method. Purchases and sales of the investments are accounted for on a trade date
plus one basis.

Income
Investment income and deposit interest are included on an accruals basis. All non-class specific income is allocated to

each share class in proportion to the number of redeemable participating shares in issue during the period. All class
specific income is allocated to the share class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis. All non-class specific expenses are allocated to each share class in
proportion to the number of redeemable participating shares in issue during the period. All class specific expenses are
allocated to the share class to which they relate.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of UK
Accounting Standards requires Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing exchange
rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss as well as the unrealised
exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the Statement of Total Return.
Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depreciation arising from non-US Dollar
denominated payables and receivables and on foreign currency transactions are reflected in the Statement of Total
Return.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated by reference to
the difference between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is reported as
an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Balance Sheet.

Cash

Cash comprises current deposits with banks.

Cash Flow Statement

Under Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (Revised) the Fund is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow
statement as it complies with the conditions for open ended investment funds.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arise from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Statement of Total
Return on an accruals basis.

Formation expense

In accordance with the Fund’s Prospectus the formation costs may be amortised over a period not exceeding five years
or such shorter period as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in line with
UK Accounting Standards, this departure from UK Accounting Standards does not have a material impact on the
results reported in the financial statements.

Management fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee payable out of the assets of each Fund. The management fee shall
be calculated and accrue at each Valuation Point and in respect thereof the calculation shall be the Net Assets
multiplied by the Management Fee Rate multiplied by the number of days elapsed since the last Valuation Point
divided by 365.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Shares in issue

Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of redeemable participating shares and will
be classified as financial liabilities. The Manager may limit the number of shares which may be redeemed to not more

than 15% of the total number of shares in issue immediately before the dealing date. Any shares failing to be redeemed
upon the exercise of this discretion by Manager shall be carried forward to the next dealing day and shall be redeemed

pro-rata in priority to any other shares in respect of which a redemption notice has subsequently been received.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

All of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund are held at fair values.

Gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities

The net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Statement of Total Return. Realised gains and
losses on sale of securities are determined using the average cost method

3 NET CAPITAL GAINS
Period Ended

30 April 2010

US$’000

Net capital gains on non-derivative investments 25,926
Net capital losses on derivative investments (1,674)
Total net capital gains 24,252

4 REVENUE Period Ended

30 April 2010

US$’000

Interest income 406

5 OPERATING EXPENSES Period Ended

30 April 2010

UsS$’000

Payable to the Manager and its associates:

Management fee (2,127)
Performance fee (1,928)
(4,055)
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Payable to the Trustee and its associates:
Trustee fees

Other expenses:

Audit fees

Formation expenses*
Other sundry expenses

Total expenses
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(143)

(24)
(16)
(119)
(159)

(4,357)

* In accordance with the Fund’s Prospectus the formation costs will be amortised over a period not exceeding five

years or such shorter period as the Manager may determine.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of the Trust deed dated 20 January 2009, HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the
Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative affairs. The Manager receives a fee of 1.65% of the net asset value
per annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro Class, and a fee of 0.90% for Institutional Class (US Dollar). The fee

outstanding at period end was US$230,246.

Under the terms of the Trust deed dated 20 January 2009, HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited was appointed the
Trustee. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset value per annum. The fee outstanding at the period end

was US$15,618.

Under the terms of the Trust deed 20 January 2009, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Investments Limited as
the Investment Adviser of the HSBC Distressed Markets Fund. The Investment Adviser receives a Performance Fee of
10% of the excess of the benchmark which is the 3 Month LIBOR plus 5% rate of the relevant currency prevailing
during the relevant period, subject to the Net Asset Value per Share at the start of the performance period is not less
than the Net Asset Value per Share at the end of any previous performance period. The fee outstanding at the period

end was US$609,049.

7 DEBTORS

Amounts paid in advance of investments purchased
Sales awaiting settlement

Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts (see Note 13)

Other debtors

8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances

As at
30 April 2010
US$'000

4,926
1,134
175
218
6,453

As at
30 April 2010
US$'000

224

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian”). The credit rating of State
Street Bank and Trust Company, the parent company of the Custodian, at 30 April 2010 was A-1+ (30 April 2009:

A-14).

9 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Loans payable (see Note 12)

Amounts received in advance of shares subscribed
Accrued trustee fee

Accrued management fee

Accrued performance fee

Other creditors
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10 TAXATION STATUS

(8,612)

The umbrella fund, HSBC Distressed Markets Fund, is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax

(Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Number Number Number Number
US Dollar Institutional Euro Total
Class Class Class
(US Dollar) (US Dollar) (Euro)
Redeemable Participating Shares in
issue at 23 April 2009 - - - -
Issued on Subscriptions 1,293,846.59 403,325.67 188,598.70 1,885,770.96
Redemptions (261,551.27) (14,006.05) (6,665.02) (282,222.34)
Redeemable Participating Shares in
issue at 30 April 2010 1,032,295.32 389,319.62 181,933.68 1,603,548.62

All series of shares rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights attached to them.

12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.I.) Limited acts as Trustee to the Fund.
Loan
The Company has the ability to borrow up to 25% of its adjusted total of capital and reserves for short-term or
temporary purposes as may be necessary for settlement of transactions, to facilitate redemption (where applicable) or
for investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund’s Net Asset Value, to facilitate additional
investment in Investment Funds.
HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the period. At the period end the loan
outstanding was US$4,850,000. The interest paid during the period was US$25,880.

13 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

The Fund may utilise derivative contracts for the purpose of hedging against foreign currency risk only and is
prohibited from investing in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. Assets may be denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of each share class and certain currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant
share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on
such contracts or by using such other derivative instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect.
The Investment Adviser retains the right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of
such hedging will be met by the holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2010 for the purposes of hedging

foreign currency assets on the HSBC Distressed Markets Fund  Euro Class.
Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gains
US$
28/05/10 EUR 20,809,000 US$ 27,533,845 State Street Bank London 175,099
28/05/10 EUR 552,306 US$ 735,335 State Street Bank London 107
Total unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 April 2010 175,206

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments are market price risk, liquidity risk and credit risks.

(&) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential
loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The Investment Adviser
considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated with particular countries or
industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on correct assessments of the future
course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There can be no assurance that the
Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities markets have in recent years been
characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy into which the Investment
Adviser has invested the Fund’s assets, there is always some, and from time to time a significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of Investments
included on page 17.

(b) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its
issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the prospectus.
The Fund’s investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Custodian of the Fund and reviewed
quarterly by the Board of Directors. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and
situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(c) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay interest nor have a
maturity date. The underlying funds the fund invests in are exposed to interest rate risk; however the Fund mitigates
this risk by diversifying its investments.

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US$223,819.

The Fund has borrowed US$4,850,000 at period end which bears interest at 1.125%. To minimise interest rate risk the
Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements.

(d) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and also bears the risk of settlement default. The Fund
minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties on recognised
and reputable exchanges.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating to unsettled
transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the brokers
used. The Fund monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate the risk.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian
). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect to securities held by the
Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions
of the Custodian the Fund uses. The credit rating of State Street Bank and Trust Company, the parent company of the
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Custodian, at 30 April 2010 was A-1+ (30 April 2009: A-1+).

In addition the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credit risk held by the underlying fund investments.

(e) Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Fund’s assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant share class
on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund’s overall currency positions and exposures are
monitored on a monthly basis by the Board of Directors.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to foreign currency risk.
This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering into forward foreign exchange contracts as described further in this note.

The following table sets out the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2010.

Currency Total Total Forward FX Net
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Euro - 28,444 28,444
US Dollar 192,115 (28,269) 163,846
192,115 175 192,290

(f) Liquidity risk
The main liability of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to sell. The risk is that the Fund
might not be able to liquidate investments positions in order to repay amounts demanded by its shareholders.
The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or other
vehicles that have no liquidity.
The Fund’s investment restrictions, as defined in the prospectus, some of which pertain to the management of liquidity
risk and concentrations thereof, include restrictions in respect of investment in close ended funds, restrictions in respect
of redemptions, restrictions in respect of the percentage holding allowable in any individual investment fund. Liquidity
risk is monitored on a continuous basis by the Custodian of the Fund. There are specific guidelines in place for
monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

15 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

All shares in issue are accumulating shares. The Manager, therefore, does not recommend the payment of a dividend to
the shareholders. All income will be “rolled-up”.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
16 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES
The following foreign exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency (United
States Dollars):
As at
30 April 2010
Euro 0.7521
17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 April 2010, the Fund did not have any significant commitments or contingent liabilities.

18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE PERIOD

HSBC Distressed Markets Fund was incorporated on the 23 April 2009.
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19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events subsequent to the period end date that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these

financial statements.

20 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved on 13 September 2010.

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2010 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
US$'000 net assets
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class N Series 1 3,247 4,171 217 %
Ashmore Emerging Market Corp High Yield - USD Class 112,080 12,601 6.55 %
Bluebay Structured High Income Loan - USD Base Performance Class | 138,600 16,563 8.61%
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited - Class B USD 2,145 7,635 3.97%
CQS Convertible Opportunities - Class B USD Shares 19,486 21,904 11.39%
Green T G2 Fund Limited - Class A 46,234 8,356 4.35 %
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Series Jan 2010
Restricted Class - Special 4 4 0.00 %
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. - Initial Series Restricted
Class 17,537 24,879 12.94 %
Jabcap Global Balanced Fund Limited - Class D2 USD - Non New Issues 157,463 28,732 14.94 %
JCAM Global Fund Ltd - Class F Series 1 June 09 13,514 15,903 8.27 %
Owl Creek Overseas Fund Ltd - Class AR Series 26 April 10 12,500,000 12,338 6.42 %
Paulson Advantage Ltd - Class A 28,834 10,789 5.61 %
Post Total Return Offshore Fund Il Ltd - Series V - 01 Nov 2007 13,084 13,952 7.26 %
Trafalgar Catalyst Fund - Class USD B/7 160,074 16,398 8.53%
194,225 101.01 %
Portfolio of Investments 194,225 101.01 %
Net current liabilities (including derivatives) (1,935) (1.01%)
Total net assets 192,290 100.00%
Net asset value per share As at
30 April 2010
HSBC Distressed Markets Fund - USD Class US$115.48
HSBC Distressed Markets Fund - Institutional USD Class US$115.82
HSBC Distressed Markets Fund - EUR Class EUR115.58
Portfolio Classification As at
30 April 2010
% of Portfolio
Securities with an official stock exchange listing 32.72%
Unlisted securities 67.28%
100.00%

Portfolio Turnover Ratio

Purchase and sale of securities (T1)
Subscription and redemption of units (T2)
Monthly average of total net assets (M)

US$369,196,203
US$234,189,130
US$151,498,116
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Portfolio Turnover Ratio 89.11%

Note  The portfolio turnover ratio is calculated as follows ((T1-T2) / M) X 100)

HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 APRIL 2010*
(UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Nominal Cost
US$’000
Credit Suisse Global 2,345 24,000
Jabcap Global Balanced Fund - Class D2 USD - Non New Issues 157,463 23,000
Halcyon Offshore Asset Backed Value Fund Ltd 17,537 22,656
CQS Convertible Opportunities Fund - Class B USD Shares 19,486 20,000
Trafalgar Catalyst Fund - Class USD B/7 160,074 16,025
JCAM Global Fund Ltd - Class F Series 1 June 09 13,514 15,418
Bluebay Structured Funds High Income Loan Fund - USD Base
Performance Class | 138,600 14,000
Ashmore Emerging Market Corporate High Yield Fund - USD Class 157,712 13,900
Post Total Return Offshore Fund Il Ltd - Series V - 01 Nov 2007 13,084 13,201
Post Total Return Offshore Fund Il Ltd - Series V - 01 Nov 2007 13,000 13,000
RWC Inc 12,678 13,000
Owl Creek Overseas Fund Ltd - Class AR Series 26 April 10 12,500,000 12,500
JCAM Global Fund Ltd - Class F Series 1 June 09 10,000 10,000
Paulson Advantage Fund Ltd - Class A 28,834 10,000
Green T G2 Fund Ltd - Class A 46,233 8,274
Halcyon Offshore Asset Backed Value Fund Ltd - Initial Series Restricted
Class 8,200 8,200
CQS ABS Feeder Fund - Class B USD 2,144 7,500
Halcyon Asset Backed Value Fund - Sub Nov 09 7,000 7,000
Halcyon Asset Backed Value Fund - Sub Oct 09 5,000 5,000
JCAM Global Fund Ltd - Class F Series 8 January 10 5,000 5,000
Sales
Description Nominal Proceeds
US$'000
Credit Suisse Global 2,345 27,545
RWC Inc 12,678 13,603
Post Total Return Offshore Fund Il Ltd - Series V - 01 Nov 2007 13,000 13,201
JCAM Global Fund Ltd 10,000 10,262
Halcyon Offshore Asset - Backed Value Fund Ltd - Initial Series
Restricted Class 8,200 9,984
Halcyon Asset Backed Value Fund - Sub Nov 09 7,000 7,215
Halcyon Asset Backed Value Fund - Sub Oct 09 5,000 5,452
JCAM Global Fund Ltd - Class F Series 8 January 10 5,000 5,156
Ashmore Emerging Market Corporate High Yield Fund - USD Class 45,632 5,000
Trafalgar Catalyst Fund - A/2 30,000 3,025
Halcyon Offshore Asset Backed Value Fund 4 5

* Significant portfolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net
assets of the Fund at the start of the period. In any event, the 20 largest purchases and the 20 largest sales must
be shown.
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2009 2008

6,460

6,460

2009 2008

10,273,50928, 608, 469

6, 460

6, 460

20009 2008

1,882,991 1,449,695
3,837,871 4,753,824

5,720,862 6,203,519

2009 2008

13,939,19913,063, 009
1,533,806 1,622,427
218,149 198, 230

15,691,15414, 883, 666

2009 2008

100, 000 100, 000

157,762 157,762
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20009 2008
21,958 727,764
(13,302,57820, 732, 883)
(15,439, 73723,087,294)
(870,826)(1,744,504)
HSBC c. 1. PBCI
PBCI
2009 12 31 PBCI 1,604, 17:
2008 2,613,677
13
2009 12 31 4,484,799,811 2
5,212,686, 479
14
2009 12 31 5,479,540 2008 4,276,044
15
HSBC

HSBC

ALCO
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20009

6,408, 957
690, 497
228,176
24,850

42,633
16, 699

2008

2009

320, 448
32,393
10, 574
1,243

2008

401, 961
4,950
68,616
5,544

49,347
15,812

2008

20,0098
(2,220)
2,640
277



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo0ooOooooo00oooOooOd(ELs060)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
2009 12 31
14,036,680
100, 000 150, 000

3,171,879 25 792,970

14,036,680
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

Notes 2009 2008
Uss$ USs$

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 198,830 311,897
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 16,077,946 37,495,057
Amounts due from funds under management 3&7 18,671,920 17,043,402
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary companies 500,000 -
Current assets 35,249,866 54,538,459
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies 9 1,882,991 1,449,695
Amounts due to related companies 9 3,837,871 4,753,824
Other liabilities 10 15,691,154 14,883,666
Current liabilities 21,412,016 21,087,185
Net current assets 13,837,850 33,451,274
Net assets 14,036,680 33,763,171
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Called up share capital 11 157,762 157,762
Retained earnings 13,878,918 33,605,409
Total shareholders' equity 14,036,680 33,763,171

The financial statements on pages 6 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2010 and are signed on its

behalf by:
M QUARRINGTON P WRENCH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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Notes 2009 2008
USs$ us$ uss us$

INCOME
Management fees 3 70,415,404 125,163,896
Sundry Income 40,602 55,014
Bank Interest 6 21,958 727,764

70,477,964 125,946,674
EXPENSES
Commissions 3 35,233,807 57,790,031
Investment advisory fees 3 16,620,743 26,094,884
Trustee and custody fees 5,178,026 7,798,283
Salaries and benefits 12 1,604,172 2,613,677
Other expenses 4 881,156 933,002
Management fees paid to
group company 471,073 515,427
Depreciation 2&5 131,483 74,572
Fees paid to non-executive
directors 53,059 33,278
Foreign exchange loss 2 30,936 1,485,051

(60,204,455) (97,338,205)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10,273,509 28,608,469
TAXATION 8 - (6,460)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 10,273,509 28,602,009

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity

USs$ Uss$ USs$

AT 1 JANUARY 2009 157,762 33,605,409 33,763,171

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 10,273,509 10,273,509
Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity:

Dividend paid (US$300 per share) - (30,000,000) (30,000,000)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 157,762 13,878,918 14,036,680
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Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
uss$ uss$ uss$
AT 1 JANUARY 2008 157,762 5,003,400 5,161,162
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 28,602,009 28,602,009
AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 157,762 33,605,409 33,763,171
The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
Notes 2009 2008
uss$ US$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 10,273,509 28,608,469
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 5 131,483 74,572
Cash flow from operating activities before
changes in working capital 10,404,992 28,683,041
Changes in working capital:
- Increase in other assets (2,128,518) (3,303,201)
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 324,831 (658,186)
8,601,305 24,721,654
Tax paid - (644,259)
Net cash generated from operating activities 8,601,305 24,077,395
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (18,416) (274,089)
Cash used in investing activities (18,416) (274,089)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to shareholders (30,000,000) -
Cash used in financing activities (30,000,000) -

118/172



EDINETOOOO
0000000000000000000000(E15060)
0o00000000o0ooooood
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (21,417,111) 23,803,306
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 37,495,057 13,691,751
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 16,077,946 37,495,057

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY’S INCORPORATION

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the ‘Company’) was registered and in Guernsey on 25 September 1986. The
Company is domiciled in Guernsey and a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Investment Holdings (Guernsey) Limited
which is registered in Guernsey. The ultimate holding company is HSBC Holdings plc, which is a publicly quoted
company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The principal activity of the Company is the management of a variety of funds.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited prepares its financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS") and are in compliance with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. IFRS comprise
accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and its predecessor body as well as
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body.

(b) In preparing these financial statements, the company has adopted the following amendments to accounting
standards:

Revised IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (‘1AS 1°).

The revised standard became effective as of 1 January 2009 and has no effect on the results reported in HSBC
Management (Guernsey) Limited financial statements. It does, however, result in certain presentational changes in
the Company’s financial statements, including the presentation of all non-owner changes in equity in the ‘statement
of comprehensive income’.

IFRS issued but not effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was published on 12 November 2009 and will replace 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The
standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, available for sale and loans and receivables.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 but may be applied earlier.

(c) The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions about future conditions. Use
of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in
the future may differ from those reported.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation of
the Company’s net income, financial position and cash flows in these financial statements have been made.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Company's financial statements:

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). These financial statements are presented in US dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Any resulting exchange differences are included in
the profit or loss for the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the rate of exchange at the date of the initial
transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency using the rate of exchange at the date the fair value was determined.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated at the following annual rates so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method:

Furniture, fixture and fittings 10%
Computer hardware and related software 331/3%

Computer software costs, other than those specifically related to hardware, are fully written off and are expensed as
incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Such
investments are normally those with less than three months’ to maturity from the date of acquisition, and include cash,
current accounts with banks, money at call, loans and advances to banks.

Revenue recognition

Management fees and administration fees are accounted for on an accruals basis. Performance fees are recognised
when the entitlement to performance fee is reasonably established.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FEES

Management and trustee fees
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The Company receives management fees and trustee fees based on the underlying net asset value of the respective
funds. Management and trustee fees are recognized on an accruals basis.

Commissions

The Company, at its discretion, has agreed to pay return commissions to those branches, fellow subsidiaries, affiliates
and associates of the HSBC Group entities and certain approved third parties introducing subscribers to funds under
management. The return commissions are two fold: firstly a return of the Initial Charge and secondly an ongoing
trailer commission based on the net asset value of monies introduced by Units and which remain invested.
Commissions are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Investment advisory fees

The Company pays investment advisory fees to fellow subsidiaries, associates of the HSBC Group entities and third
parties providing investment advice to the funds under management. Investment advisory fees are accounted for on an
accruals basis.

Manager’s performance fees

Under the management agreement with the HSBC Multi-Adviser Funds, HSBC Unifolio Funds, HSBC Alternative
Portfolio Funds, HSBC Alternative Investments Portfolio Funds and The Hermitage Fund, the Company is entitled to
receive a performance fee. The Company has the ability to share any such performance fees received with associates
and investment advisers as appropriate. Performance fees totalling US$2,558,166 have been received in the year
ended 31 December 2009 (2008: US$19,455,533). An expense for performance fees payable is recognized when the
right to recover performance fee income is established.

4. OTHER EXPENSES
Other expense include rental charges of US$121,063 (2008: US$120,484) where the Company is the lessee. The

premises of the Company are rented and this agreement has expired. The renewal of the property lease is currently
being negotiated.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixtures and Computer Total
fittings hardware &
related software
Uss$ US$ Us$
COST
At 1 January 2009 122,093 1,185,804 1,307,897
Additions - 18,416 18,416
At 31 December 2009 122,093 1,204,220 1,326,313
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2009 111,151 884,849 996,000
Charge for year 2,885 128,598 131,483
At 31 December 2009 114,036 1,013,447 1,127,483
NET BOOK AMOUNT 8,057 190,773 198,830

At 31 December 2009
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At 31 December 2008 10,942 300,955 311,897

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2009 are balances with a related party, HSBC Private Bank

(C.1.) Limited, of US$16,077,946 (2008: US$37,294,647). During 2009 the Company earned interest on these
balances of US$21,958 (2008: US$727,764).

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

2009 2008

US$ US$

Management fees 16,811,423 15,361,000
Other fees 1,597,651 1,395,842
Trustee fees 262,846 286,560
18,671,920 17,043,402

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. TAXATION
With effect from 1 January 2008, the company is taxed at the applicable standard rate of 0%.

The charge for taxation comprises:

2009 2008
US$ US$
Guernsey tax charge  adjustment in respect of prior years - 6,460
Tax expense - 6,460

The actual tax charge differs from the expected tax charge computed by applying the standard rate of Guernsey tax as
follows:

2009 2008
USs$ USs$
Profit before tax 10,273,509 28,608,469
Under provisions  prior year - 6,460
Current tax charge - 6,460

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANIES

2009 2008

US$ US$

Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies 1,882,991 1,449,695
Amounts due to related companies 3,837,871 4,753,824
5,720,862 6,203,519

Amounts due to Group Companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

10. OTHER LIABILTIES

2009 2008
USs$ Us$
Commission payable 13,939,199 13,063,009
Other creditors 1,533,806 1,622,427
Investment advisory fee payable 218,149 198,230
15,691,154 14,883,666
11. SHARE CAPITAL
2009 2008
Authorised: £ £
100,000 ordinary shares of £ 1 each 100,000 100,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid: USs$ USs$
100,000 ordinary shares of £ 1 each
(translated at historic cost) 157,762 157,762

The ordinary shares which represent the equity interests have the following rights attached:

They carry the right to any fixed dividend as may from time to time be recommended by the Directors and declared
by the Company;

They have voting rights with each share carrying one vote;

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and have
been disclosed in these financial statements.

Apart from transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company entered into the
following transactions with its fellow subsidiary companies and related companies:

2009 2008
Us$ Us$
INCOME STATEMENT
Interest income 21,958 727,764
Commissions (13,302,578) (20,732,883)
Investment advisory fees (15,439,737) (23,087,294)
Trustee and custody fees (870,826) (1,744,504)

All staff acting on behalf of the Company are employed by HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited (PBCI). On a monthly
basis, PBCI invoices the Company for staff utilised in the Company’s operations. For the year ended 31 December
2009, PBCI billed the Company a total of US$1,604,172 (2008: US$2,613,677) for salaries and benefits.

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The total net asset of funds under the Company’s management at 31 December 2009 was US$4,484,799,811 (2008:
US$5,212,686,479).

CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The total balance of client accounts at 31 December 2009 was US$5,479,549 (2008: US$4,276,044).

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15

. RISK MANAGEMENT

a Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its obligations
under a contract of fund administration. The Company has standards, policies and procedures dedicated to

controlling and monitoring risks from all such activities.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with HSBC Group companies where management considers the credit risk
to be minimal.

Other assets represent accrued bank interest receivable from HSBC Group companies and fees due from funds under
management which are short term in nature.

b Market risk management
Market risk is the risk that the value of funds under management decrease with a resultant effect on income.

The Company manages market risk through risk limits approved by the Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO).

¢ Foreign exchange exposure

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s foreign exchange exposure arises from changes in the US$ equivalent value of
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amounts denominated in foreign currencies as set out below:

2009 2008
uss US$
ASSETS
Euro 6,408,957 401,961
British Pound 690,497 4,950
Swiss Franc 228,176 68,616
Japanese Yen 24,850 5,544
LIABILITIES
British Pound 42,633 49,347
Swiss Franc 16,699 15,812

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December would have resulted in
the profits (losses) shown below. A 5 percent weakening of the US dollar would have had the equal but opposite
effect to the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

2009 2008
uss$ uss$
Euro 320,448 20,098
British Pound 32,393 (2,220)
Swiss Franc 10,574 2,640
Japanese Yen 1,243 277

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
d Liquidity management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise raising funds to
meet commitments.

The Company uses various sources to provide a stable funding. These include maintaining bank balances in instant
access call accounts, inter-group funding and the Company’s shareholders’ equity.

e Capital management

The Company is regulated by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission which sets and monitors capital
requirements for the Company as described on page 20. Management regularly monitors the Company’s capital to
ensure compliance with the requirements of the Guernsey Financial Services Commission.

f Interest risk management

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its cash and cash equivalents (note 6). The Company only
maintains interest bearing call accounts and as such interest rate risk is minimal.

g Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising through fraud, unauthorised activities, error, omission, inefficiency,
systems failure or from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation and covers a wide spectrum of
issues.

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a controls-based environment in which processes are documented,
authorisation is independent and transactions are reconciled and monitored. This is supported by an independent
programme of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit, and by monitoring external operational risk events,
which ensures that the HSBC Group stays in line with best practice and takes account of lessons learned from
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publicised operational failures within the financial services industry.

The HSBC Group has codified its operational risk management process by issuing a high level standard. This
explains how the HSBC Group manages operational risk by identifying, assessing, monitoring, controlling and
mitigating the risk, rectifying operational risk events, and implementing any additional procedures required for
compliance with local regulatory requirements. The processes undertaken to manage operational risk are determined
by reference to the scale and nature of each HSBC Group operation. The HSBC Group standard covers the
following:

Operational risk management responsibility is assigned at a senior management level within the business
operation;

Information systems are used to record the identification and assessment of operational risks and generate
appropriate, regular management reporting;

Operational risks are identified by risk assessments covering operational risks facing each business and risks
inherent in processes, activities and products. Risk assessment incorporates a regular review of risks identified
to monitor significant changes;

Operational risk loss data is collected and reported to senior management. This report covers aggregate
operational risk losses and details of incidents above a materiality threshold; and

Risk mitigation, including insurance, is considered where this is cost-effective.

Local management is responsible for implementation of the HSBC Group standard on operational risk.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
h Reputational risk management

The safeguarding of HSBC’s reputation is of paramount importance to its continued prosperity and is the
responsibility of every member of staff. Reputational risks can arise from social, ethical or environmental issues, or
as a consequence of operational risk events. As a banking group, HSBC’s good reputation depends upon the way in
which it conducts its business, but it can also be affected by the way in which clients, to whom it provides financial
services, conduct themselves.

Reputational risks are considered and assessed by the Board, the Group Management Board, the Risk Management
Meeting, subsidiary company boards, board committees and/or senior management during the formulation of policy
and the establishment of HSBC standards. Standards on all major aspects of business are set for HSBC and for
individual subsidiaries, businesses and functions. These policies, which are an integral part of the internal control
systems, are communicated through manuals and statements of policy and are promulgated through internal
communications and training. The policies set out operational procedures in all areas of reputational risk, including
money laundering deterrence, environmental impact, anti-corruption measures and employee relations.

The Group internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and standard.

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

Uss$
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Gross capital per Balance Sheet on page 7 14,036,680
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES REQUIREMENT

Absolute minimum requirement (£ 100,000)

EXPENDITURE BASED REQUIREMENT

Expenditure per Statement of Comprehensive Income US$3,171,879 x 25%

SATISFACTION OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Financial resources

Financial resources required

NET SURPLUS FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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76

23 103
22 31
84.56
2010 30
2010 30
25,209,1892, 131,689
619, 639 52,397
181,521 15, 349
500,000 42,280
15,918,5071, 346, 0609
42,428,8563,587, 784
6,579, 837 556, 391
14,607,8221, 235, 237
21,187,6591, 791, 628
157,762 13,340
13,878,9171,173,601
7,204,518 609, 214
21,241,1971, 796, 156

42,428,

8563,587, 784
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2010 30
(367) (31)
(367) (31)
36,761,6573, 108,566

(17,762,79@)1,502,022)
(14,159,620), 197, 338)

4,839,236 409,206
4,514,749 381,767
4,514,749 381,767
9,353,618 790,942
(540,845) (45,734)
(632,034) (53,445)
(139,943) (11,834)

(171, 366)
(403, 758)
(49, 906)

(14, 491)
(34, 142)
(4,220)

(1,937,852)(163, 865)

7,415,766 627,077
(211,248) (17, 863)
7,204,518 609,214
7,204,518 609,214
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HSBC
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HSBC C. |
HSBC Private Bank C. I|. Limited
22 2,496 21 1,062
60 GY1l 1EE
HSBC 20 31 HSBC
State Street Custodi al Services |l reland Limited
22 200, 000 2,615
HSBC
State Street Fund Services I reland Limited
22 350, 000 4,576
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC Al ternative I nvestments Limited
22 1,078,543 9,120
SW1A 1JB 78
HSBC HSBC
22 24, 422,137,143
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22 224 9,396 8,235 2,445 943 125
598 3,276
21 UFJ

10. 87

HSBC C. |

HSBC Private Bank C. I|. Limited
1987

State Street Custodi al Services |l reland Limited
State Street Fund Services I reland Limited
HSBC

HSBC Al ternative I nvestments Limited

HSBC HSBC
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR™S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSB(

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Speci al
year ended 30 April 2010 which comprise of the Statement
in Net Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemabl e
the related notes These financi al statements have been
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out therein.
This report is made solely to the Fund's sharehol ders, &
of the Collective I nvestment Schemes (Class B) Rules 19¢
that we might state to the Fund’'s shareholders those mat
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the ful
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than t he
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the of
Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors
The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager ' s [
accordance with applicable Guernsey |l aw and UK Accountir
the Manager’'s Responsibilities on page 5
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements
regul atory requirements and International Standards on /
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financi al
are properly prepared in accordance with the Collective
the principal documents. We also report to you if, in ot
accounting records, or if we have not received al the i
our audit.
We read he other information ccompanying the financi al
consistent with those statements We consider the implic
any apparent misstatements or materi al i nconsistencies v
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
i ssued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit incl ude
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financi al
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are ¢
consistently applied and adequately disclosed
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all t
considered necessary in order to provide us with suffici
that the financi al statements are free from materi al mi ¢
irregul arity or error. In forming our opinion we also e\
presentation of information in the financial statements
Opi nion
I n our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Acco
Fund’ s affairs as at 30 April 2010 and of its profit
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co
Rules 1990 and the principal document s.
KPMG Channel Il slands Limited
Guernsey
Dat e: 17 September 2010
HSBC
2009 23 2010 4 30 HSBC
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HSBC DISTRESSED MARKETS FUND

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR™S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSB(

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Distrec
period from 23 April 2009 (date of incorporation) to 30
of Tot al Return, the Statement of Movements in Net Asset
Participating Shares, the Balance Sheet and the related
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report is made solely to the Fund’'s sharehol ders, ¢
of the Collective I nvestment Schemes (Class B) Rules 19¢
that we might state to the Fund’'s shareholders those mat
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the ful
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than t he
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the of
Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditors

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager ' s F
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accordance with applicable Guernsey | aw and UK Accountir
the Manager’'s Responsibilities on page 5
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements
regul atory requirements and International Standards on /
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financi al
are properly prepared in accordance with the Collective
the principal document s We also report to you if, in ol
accounting records, or if we have not received all the i
our audi't
We read the other information accompanying the financi al
consistent with those statements We consider the implic
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
i ssued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit incl ude
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financi al
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are ¢
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all t
considered necessary in order to provide us with suffici
that the financial statements are free from material mi s
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also e\
presentation of information in the financi al statement s
Opi nion
I n our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Acco
Fund's affairs as at 30 April 2010 and of its profit
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co
Rules 1990 and the principal document s.
KPMG Channel Il sl ands Limited

Guernsey

Dat e: 17 September 2010
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4. 02 2009 12 31

2010 31

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LI MITED

We have audited the financial statements of HSBC Manager
for the year ended 31 December 2009 which comprise the ¢
Bal ance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
These financial statements have been prepared under the
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as
The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has
the Company’s members those matters we are required to ¢
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted I
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
wor k, for this report, or for the opinions we have f or me

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the financ
view and are in accordance with International Financi al
with applicable Guernsey | aw are set out in the Statemer
3.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements
regul atory requirements and I nternatio I Standards on /
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financi al
in accordance with I nternational Financi al eporting St e
(Guernsey) Law, 2008. We also report to you if, in our
accounting records, or if we have not received all the i
our audit.

We read the other information accompanying the financi al
consistent with those statements. We consider the i mpli

of any apparent misstatements or materi al nconsi stenci e

We are also required to examine the Statement of Financi
whet her, in our opinion, the financial resources requir e
Collective I nvestment Schemes (Designated Persons) Rul es

Basis of audit opinion
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International
i ssued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit incl uc
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements r
the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately discl
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all t
considered necessary in order to provide us with suffici
that the financial statements are free from material mi s
irregul arity or error. I n forming our opinion we al so e
presentation of information in the financial statements.

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LI MITED (CONTI NUED)

Opi nion
I n our opinion the financial statements:

’

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company
its profit for the year then ended;

are in accordance with I nternational Financi al Reporti

comply with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financi al
opinion the financial resources requirement specified ir
Schemes (Designated Persons) Rules, 1988 was satisfied ¢
KPMG Channel Il sl ands Limited

Chartered Accountants
31 March 2010
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1988
4. 02 2008 12 31

2009 30

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LI MITED

We have audited the financial statements (the "'"financi e
(Guernsey) Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 3
Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes i
related notes. These financial statements have been pr e

therein.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as
The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994. Our audit work has
the Company's members those matters we are required to s
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by | ¢
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and t he
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have f or me

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report ¢
statements in accordanc with applicable Guernsey | aw ar
Standards (I FRS) as set out in the Statement of Director
Our responsibility is to audit the financi al statements

regul atory requirements and International Standards on /
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financi al
are properly prepared in accordance with The Companies (
if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accc«
all the information and explanations we require for our

We read the Report the Directors and consider the i my
of any apparent misstatements within it.

We are also required to examine the Statement of Financi
whet her, in our opinion, the financial resources requir e
Collective I nvestment Schemes (Designated Persons) Rul es

Basis of audit opinion
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International
i ssued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit incl uc
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements r
the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disc
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all t
considered necessary in order to provide us with suffici
that the financial statements are free from materi al mi s
irregul arity or error. I n forming our opinion we al so e
presentation of information in the financial statements.
| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LI MITED (Continued)
Opi nion
I n our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with Internat
the state of the Company’'s affairs as at 31 December
ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with The Com
Furthermore, we have examined the Statement of Financi al
opinion the financial resources requirement specified ir
Schemes (Designated Persons) Rules, 1988 was satisfied &
KPMG Channel Il sl ands Limited

Chartered Accountants

30 March 20009
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